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Watkins, Robert

From: Watkins, Robert
Sent: Thursday, February 17, 2022 7:50 AM
To: adelle@wegroh.com
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B
Subject: February BAR Action - 617 Park Street

Certificate of Appropriateness  
BAR 22-02-01 
617 Park Street, TMP 520186000                        
North Downtown ADC District 
Owner: Lucy Taurel and Alex Bassett 
Applicant: Adelle Chenier 
Project: Play structure 
 
Dear Adelle, 
 
The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of Architectural 
Review (BAR) on February 15, 2022. The following action was taken: 
 
Cheri Lewis moves to approve the consent agenda. 
Ron Bailey seconds motion. Motion passes unanimously (9-0). 
 
A Certificate of Appropriateness was approved for your project as a result of it being on the consent agenda. Please also 
find the suggested motion for approval from the staff report: 
 
Approval: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City’s ADC District Design 
Guidelines, I move to find that the proposed play structure at 617 Park Street satisfies the BAR’s criteria and is 
compatible with this property and other properties in the North Downtown ADC District, and that the BAR approves the 
application as submitted. 
 
If you would like to hear the specifics of the discussion, the meeting video is on-line at:  
https://boxcast.tv/channel/vabajtzezuyv3iclkx1a?b=tycoam74nerhajuktwgz . 
 
Per the provisions of City Code Sec. 34-280: This CoA is valid for 18 months [from the date of BAR approval]; upon 
written request and for reasonable cause, the director of NDS or the BAR may extend that period by one year; and this 
CoA does not, in and of itself, authorize any work or activity that requires a separate building permit.  
(Complete text of Sec. 34-280: 
https://library.municode.com/va/charlottesville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CO_CH34ZO_ARTIIOVDI_DIV2HIPR
ARDECOOVDI_S34-280VACEAP) 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at watkinsro@charlottesville.gov.   
 
Sincerely,  
Robert  
 
Robert Watkins 
Assistant Historic Preservation and Design Planner 
Neighborhood Development Services 
PO Box 911 
Charlottesville, VA 22902 
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City of Charlottesville 
Board of Architectural Review 
Staff Report  
February 15, 2022 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness Application 
BAR 22-02-01 
617 Park Street, TMP 520186000   
North Downtown ADC District 
Owner: Lucy Taurel and Alex Bassett 
Applicant: Adelle Chenier 
Project: Play structure 
 

  
Background 
Year Built: c1880 
District: North Downtown ADC District 
Status:  Contributing 
 
Prior BAR Reviews 
(See Appendix.) 
 
Application 

• Applicant’s submittal (5 pages): massing diagrams of proposed play structure (p.1), 
material specifications and structure dimensions (p.1), site drawings and photographs 
identifying proposed location. Submittal dated January 3, 2022 (pp. 2-5). 

 
Request CoA to construct a play structure in northwest corner of parcel, adjacent to existing 
wood fence. Play structure will incorporate existing tree stump. 
 
Discussion and Recommendations 
Staff recommends the BAR refer to the criteria established in Chapter II: Site Design and 
Elements in the ADC District Guidelines. From G. Garages, Sheds & Other Structures: 

• Choose designs for new outbuildings that are compatible with the major buildings on the 
site. 

• Take clues and scale from older outbuildings in the area. 
• Use traditional roof slopes and traditional materials. 
• Place new outbuildings behind the dwelling. 
• If the design complements the main building however, it can be visible from primary 

elevations or streets. 
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• The design and location of any new site features should relate to the existing character of 
the property. 

 
Staff finds that the form, materials, and siting of the proposed play structure are compatible with 
these guidelines and recommends approval.  
 
Suggested motion 
Approval: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City’s ADC 
District Design Guidelines, I move to find that the proposed play structure at 617 Park Street 
satisfies the BAR’s criteria and is compatible with this property and other properties in the North 
Downtown ADC District, and that the BAR approves the application as submitted.. 
 
[..as submitted with the following modifications…] 
 
Denial: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including the ADC 
District Design Guidelines, I move to find that the proposed play structure at 617 Park Street 
does not satisfy the BAR’s criteria and is not compatible with this property and other properties 
in the North Downtown ADC District, and that for the following reasons the BAR denies the 
application as submitted…  
 
Criteria, Standards, and Guidelines 
Review Criteria Generally  
Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that, in considering a particular application the BAR shall 
approve the application unless it finds: 
(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or 

applicable provisions of the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to 
Sec.34-288(6); and 

(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the 
district in which the property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the 
application. 

 
Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include: 
(1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed 

addition, modification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with the 
site and the applicable design control district; 

(2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and 
placement of entrances, windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs; 

(3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of 
Federal Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant; 

(4) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood; 
(5) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as 

gardens, landscaping, fences, walls and walks; 
(6) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an 

adverse impact on the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures; 
(7) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines. 
 
Pertinent ADC District Design Guidelines  
Chapter II – Site Design and Elements  

http://weblink.charlottesville.org/public/0/edoc/793064/3_Chapter%20II%20Site%20Design%20and%20Elements_BAR.pdf
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G. Garages, Sheds & Other Structures 
1. Retain existing historic garages, outbuildings, and site features in their original locations. 
2. If it is acceptable to relocate a secondary structure, locate it in such a way that it remains 

consistent with the general pattern of outbuildings to the main structure. (See Chapter VII 
C. Moving Historic Structures.) 

3. Choose designs for new outbuildings that are compatible with the major buildings on the 
site. 

4.  Take clues and scale from older outbuildings in the area. 
5. Use traditional roof slopes and traditional materials. 
6. Place new outbuildings behind the dwelling. 
7. If the design complements the main building however, it can be visible from primary
 elevations or streets. 
8. The design and location of any new site features should relate to the existing character of 

the property. 
 
APPENDIX 
Prior BAR Reviews: 
 
August 17, 1999: The BAR unanimously approved the construction of a new sunroom on the 
north side.  
 
April 14, 2006: Staff administratively approved the restoration of the original clapboard siding.  
August 21, 2007 - The BAR approved (7-1) the application for a garden shed as submitted.  
 
December 17, 2013 - The BAR approved (8-0) the applicant’s request as submitted to demolish 
the 1920’s addition, the sleeping porch, and the 1999 addition.   
 
June 17, 2014 – The BAR accepted (9-0) the applicant’s request for deferral to incorporate the 
BAR’s comments.  
 
July 15, 2014 – The BAR approved (6-0) the proposed addition and site work, except the hedge 
on Park Street, for which the applicant has requested deferral to give them opportunity to discuss 
the revised plan with their client. 
 
August 19, 2014 - The BAR approved (7-0) a Boxwood hedge along Park Street with a mature 
height of not over 4 feet, after a motion to allow a 6 foot high English Boxwood hedge failed (3-
4), and a motion to deny the application for a 6 foot high American Boxwood was withdrawn. 
 
January 20, 2015 - The BAR approved (7-0), (1) a new plan has been submitted that moves a 
portion of the stone retaining wall approximately two feet to the east; (2) a request to reposition a 
portion of the wood fence to allow less impact on the roots of an existing Oak tree; and (3) a 
request to apply stucco finish instead of stone to approximately 21 feet of the wall. The wall 
would retain a continuous stone coping; (4) the applicant is requesting new fencing to replace an 
existing wire fence, to be located 2 feet south of the north property line.  
 
March 21, 2017 – the BAR approves (7-0) the applicants’ request for a deferral. The application 
proposed a new circular driveway on the side of the parcel that would have entered and exited 
off of Wine Street.  
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	SITE DESIGN AND PORTICO ENTRANCE: 
	SITE DESIGN AND PORTICO ENTRANCE: 
	The west portion of the site has undergone several adjustments and enhancements since the initial presentation. To create a more 
	significant plaza space with better proportions, the building portico 
	entrance was foreshortened/truncated adding seventeen feet to the 
	plaza. This adjustment allowed for an additional row of trees creating 
	two groups of three framing the enlarged elliptical form. The elliptical form, a theme that continues into the lobby and courtrooms, represents harmony and cooperation for the greater good.  
	Figure
	To preserve the function of accessible on-street parking and emergency access, the parallel parking lane remains as currently exists along 
	Park Street. Lighting in the plaza is all indirect with integrated bench 
	downlighting, and spillover light from the portico entrance.  The 
	seat walls and benches have been simplified to be rectilinear in the 
	space and tucked next to the shade trees, freeing the ellipse to be an unencumbered monumental and ceremonial space. 
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	REDLANDS CLUB 
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	The portico architecture has continued refinement. The original five-
	bay portico has been reduced to a three-bay portico, reminiscent of the west site entrances and Levy, creating an A-B-A arrangement with bookended corners. The smaller fenestration on the corners appropriately expresses the functions within. The portico is a modern expression of slender steel columns with a brise soleil roof. 
	A small weatherlock with glazing muntins recalling the surrounding 
	fenestration protects guests from the elements. The cornice lines 
	have been adjusted and refined. The primary architrave is aligned with 
	the pilaster capital of the Levy Building. The cornices are arranged within three groupings: the primary building mass (courtrooms), the entrance massing and chambers (secondary height), and the hyphen connecting Levy (tertiary height). The primary cornice is slightly lower than the Levy and thus deferential to the historic structure. The coloration of the cornice/trim elements is deliberately intended to be similar in color to the brick so as to create a backdrop to the 18th and early to mid-19th century a
	the pilaster capital of the Levy Building. The cornices are arranged within three groupings: the primary building mass (courtrooms), the entrance massing and chambers (secondary height), and the hyphen connecting Levy (tertiary height). The primary cornice is slightly lower than the Levy and thus deferential to the historic structure. The coloration of the cornice/trim elements is deliberately intended to be similar in color to the brick so as to create a backdrop to the 18th and early to mid-19th century a
	portico and window coloration of light blue / gray again is a deferential nod to the historic fabric, intentionally avoiding mimicking the trim detailing of the historic elements and  maintaining a civic character and complementary relationship. 

	Figure
	The design team and County leadership are in the process of negotiating removal or replacement of trees in question along the property edge at the Jessup House and Redlands Club. 

	FACADE DESIGN: 
	FACADE DESIGN: 
	The façade has undergone a thorough refinement of the brick detailing and proportional relationships. The façade is broken into a base, ground story, second story (piano nobile / courts floor), and cornice/ top. Brick corbeling and matching cast stone are integrated into belts and cornices in keeping with the monochromatic palette. Bricks 
	are a custom blend of four types to sensitively respond to the rich range of colors of the west site; bricks are a Norman brick proportion to distinguish new from historic brickwork. Three sample boards 
	under consideration are included as part of this submission. Mortar is matching the brick to reduce the contrasting colors and create a harmonious relationship in the complex of judicial buildings. 
	Figure
	The watertable is a very subtle two-to-four inch step in cast stone matching the brick.  The two-story order directly corresponds to the Levy Building order and the 1803 portico, giving a clear message of the civic purpose of the building. Equally, the light blue/gray window shapes are a departure from the 6 over 6, or 9 over 9 divided lite double hung windows common to the neighboring buildings. The penthouse is deeply set back from the building and is not in view from several vantage points. The screen wa
	The walls along Redlands property (south and west elevations) have been studied and reworked. The façade was reduced by seventeen feet in the west-east direction and broken into proportions commensurate with the townhouse quality of the neighboring buildings. Subtle recessed panels give scale and reinforce proportions. The east façade has reduced fenestration to create an A-B-A-B-A arrangement expressive of the courtrooms within. 
	Figure
	This adjustment brings down the scale fronting the Jessup House. The north elevation is proportional to the Levy Building expressing the chambers within and sets back from Levy. The lowered hyphen restores the full historic cornice of Levy along the east side. Stairs on the north and south are expressed in an adjustment to fenestration heights and further breaks the scale down for the neighboring streets. 
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